
 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
April 1, 2019 

6:00 p.m. 
Commissioner’s Meeting Room – Ground Floor Ste. 16 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 
 

WORK SESSION (5:00 p.m.) –2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ELEMENT UPDATE 
I. Call to Order (6:00 p.m.)                                  

NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 
DISTRICT 1 – CARL PENNAMON, CHAIR     
DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY, VICE-CHAIR     
DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN     
DISTRICT 4 – VACANT     
DISTRICT 5  - DOUG LUKE     
  
 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       
III.    Invocation – District 5 
         
 IV.    Approval of Agenda 
                    
 V.      Consent Agenda –  
1.   Approval of Minutes: 

x Regular Meeting Minutes March 4, 2019 
 

2.   Check Register – Check #’s 54638 - 54865 
 
VI.   Public Hearing  

 
Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as rezoning, 
ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the County 
Commissioners.  Following the public hearing, the Board of Commissioners will take action on each 
item presented below.  
 

1. A public hearing will be held for a Special Event Center addition to the Permitted Uses in 
the Jasper County Ordinance under Agricultural zoning (AG) with a Special Use Permit 
required. (1st Reading) 
 

2. A public hearing will be held for a Special Use Permit for a family burial plot on Tax Map 
042-031 containing 141.78 acres.  Owner of the property is Phillip Greene. 

 
 

 
VIII. Presentations/Delegations –  

VII. County Commissioner Items 

1



 

 

Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not more than ten 
(10) minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens,  county employees or other events by the 
Commissioners.   

 
IX.   Regular Agenda 
 
Old Business:   

1. 2018 CIE Update 
2. Jasper County Recreation Board Appointment 
3. 2019 LMIG Project – Goolsby Road Bid Award 

 
New Business: 

1. Tax Assessor – Mapping Contract – Geoview, LLC 
2. Tax Assessor – Board of Assessor Appointment 
3. Extension – Request County Funding to Match UGA Funding – IT Equipment 
4. Family Cemetery Special Use Permit 
5. East GA Broadband Resolution 
6. Courthouse Maintenance RFP Award – Inspection, Bid Preparation, Project Oversight 
7. Senior Center – NEGRC DHS Transportation Additional Funding – Budget Amendment 
8. Senior Center – NEGRC AAA Additional Funding – Budget Amendment 
9. Senior Center -  NEGRC AAA Additional Funding Reimbursement – Budget Amendment  

 
 

 X.   County Attorney Items 
 
 XI.   County Manager Update 

 
XII.   Citizen Comments  

The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the Commission for 
not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney will keep time.  Please be 
courteous of the 3 minute time limit. 

 
XIII. Executive Session 
        
Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as provided by O.C.G.A.  
§50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real   estate as provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-3(4); 
and, discussion on employment, compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided 
in O.C.G.A. § 50-14-3(6)  
 
      
   XIV. Adjournment  
 
  

2



 

 

Consent Agenda – Item 1 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  April 1, 2019 
 
Subject:  Approval of Minutes 
 
Summary: 
Minutes have been completed for the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 
 

x Regular Meeting Minutes, March 4, 2019 
 

Background: 
 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve minutes for:  
 

x Regular Meeting Minutes, March 4, 2019 
  

3



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 4, 2019 – Regular Meeting  
 

  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

March 4, 2019 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

6:00 P.M. 

Comm. Pennamon called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Commissioners Present: Chairman, Carl Pennamon, Vic-Chairman, Bruce Henry, Don Jernigan, and Doug 
Luke. 

Staff Present: Mike Benton, County Manager, Clerk, Sharon Robinson, Finance Director, Dennis Pate, and 
County Attorney, David Ozburn. Also, Planning Director, Shane Sealy, Senior Center Director, Tracy Norton, 
and Public Works Director, Preston Campbell. 

Pledge of Allegiance: 

Invocation: 

Rev. Preston Campbell, Maddox Chapel Missionary Baptist Church. 

Agenda Approval: 

Comm. Henry made motion approve the agenda as presented, Comm. Luke seconded; passed unanimously. 

Consent Agenda: 

Minutes:  

Comm. Jernigan made motion to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of February 4, 2019, Henry seconded; 
passed unanimously. 

Check Register: 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to approve the check register which included check #’s 54402 - 54637 for 
payment, Luke seconded; passed unanimously. 

Public Hearing: 

None 

Commissioner’s Items: 

Jernigan – He has gotten calls about the litter problem in the count.  Sheriff notified him On March 23rd there 
will be a Community-wide litter pick-up and would like for permission to be granted to take litter to Landfill at 
no cost. Thanked Rev. Horton and Boys to Men Club of Springfield Baptist Church for their efforts in picking 
up trash. Also Kasey Hall has offered to have 4-H’ers volunteer to pick up trash. 

Henry – None 

4



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 4, 2019 – Regular Meeting  
 

Luke - County Line Rd, Bear Creek Marina, and Bear Creek Point need clean-up.  Bragged on how professional 
the Landfill staff was when he was there on Saturday. 

Pennamon – talked to Steve Edwards at Advanced Disposal and he has agreed to provide trash bags year round, 
asks that the County Manager purchase the bags through the county and he will reimburse the county.  He has 
received calls about blighted properties in the county.  

Presentations/Delegations:  

None 

Regular Agenda: 

Old Business: 

Cannery Property Status: 
 
Comm. Pennamon noted we may have another option on this property.  He asks to move this discussion to after 
Executive Session. 
 
Board members agreed to move it to after Executive Session. 
  
2018 Capital Improvements Element – Impact Fees: 

Mr. Benton noted we have met, had Public Hearings and submitted documents to DCA.  DCA has returned the 
documents and would like the projects to be more specifically named and not use “facility update” as a 
description.  

Comm. Pennamon noted this goes along with Impact Fees, he feels we need to look at percentages and the 
projects we will use Impact Fee monies on. 

Mr. Benton noted we have to get the 2018 CIE updated and also the 2019 CIE is also on the agenda to discuss. 

Mr. Benton reviewed a project update report with the Board.  

Board agreed to have a Work Session at the April meeting to discuss Impact Fees. 

2019 CDBG Application DCA Submission Approval: 

Mr. Benton noted the minimum local cash match is $22,500.  The BOC will need to approve and match the cash 
match of $22,500 if awarded. 
 
Comm. Henry made motion to approve and Authorize Chairman to sign the resolution 2019-03-04-02 
approving the submission of a 2019 Community Development Block Grant application to the Department of 
Community Affairs to help finance the Health Department Relocation and Renovation project as stated; 
Jernigan seconded.  Passed unanimously. 
 

New Business: 

Appointments to Planning and Zoning Board: 

5



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 4, 2019 – Regular Meeting  
 

Mr. Sealy noted Planning and Zoning has five (5) vacancies for the Planning and Zoning Board and they have 
four expired members willing to serve again.  They have advertised the vacancies and did receive an interest 
letter from Ronald Burch. 
 
Comm. Pennamon gave Mr. McCombie, Ms. Campbell, and Mr. Burch the opportunity to publicly express their 
interest in serving on the board. Mr. Owens and Ms. Bennett could not be in attendance.  
 
Comm. Luke made motion to appoint Justin Owens for a 3-year term, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 
 
Comm. Henry made motion to appoint Julie Bennett for a 2-year term, Jernigan seconded passed unanimously. 
 
Comm. Luke made motion to appoint Mike McCombie for a 3-year term, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 
 
Comm. Henry made motion to appoint Francis Campbell for a 1-year term, Jernigan seconded; passed 
unanimously. 
 
Comm. Jernigan made motion to appoint Ronald Burch for a 2-year term, Henry seconded; passed 
unanimously. 
 

Appointments to Planning and Zoning Appeals Board: 
 
Mr. Sealy noted Planning and Zoning has five (5) vacancies for the Zoning Appeals Board and they have three 
expired members willing to serve again.  They have advertised the vacancies and did receive an interest letter 
from Mary Patrick. 
 
Comm. Pennamon gave Mr. Boyd, Mr. Wynn, and Ms. Patrick the opportunity to publicly express their interest 
in serving on the Appeals Board. Mr. Kelly could not be in attendance. 
 
Comm. Henry made motion to appoint Andrew Boyd for 3-year term, Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously.   
 
Comm. Jernigan made motion to appoint Terry Wynn for a 3-year term, Luke seconded; passed unanimously. 
 
Comm. Luke made motion to appoint Paul Kelly for a 1-year term, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 
 
Comm. Luke made motion to appoint Mary Patrick for a 2-year term, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 
 
 
HB 302 and SB 172 – Preemption of Local Building Design Standards: 

Mr. Sealy noted HB 302 and SB 172 is legislation introduced into the Georgia General Assembly that would 
preempt local government’s ability to regulate building design elements in single or double family dwellings 
standards. The proposed bills would prohibit counties from adopting local building standards.  

Mr. Sealy further noted, if a house meets state minimum standard building codes, it can be built. The 
preemption does not apply to state or federal historic districts, mobile homes and homes governed by a 
neighborhood association or covenant.  

 
 

6



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 4, 2019 – Regular Meeting  
 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to authorize Chairman to sign Resolution # 2019-03-04-01 Opposing House Bill 
302 and Senate Bill 172, Preemption of Local Building Design Standards, Henry seconded; passed 
unanimously. 
 

Senior Center 2012 SPLOST Expenditure Request: 

Tracy Norton noted the Senior Center 2012 SPLOST has $2,087.35 remaining allocation. The Senior Center 
would like to purchase a 5-compartment steam table with this. We currently have a four-compartment steam 
table but need a 5-compartment for our new kitchen. We will allow the Sheriff’s Department kitchen to use our 
old steam table. 
 
Comm. Luke made motion to approve the Senior Center to use the remaining 2012 SPLOST Senior 
Center allocation in the amount of $2087.54 for the expenditures of purchasing a 5-
compartment steam table; remainder of $671.43 will come out of Senior Center line item 
budget for a total of $2,758.78, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 
 

Clean Up Jasper County – April 2019: 

Comm. Pennamon noted the Board of Commissioners has been allowing residents of Jasper County to use the 
landfill during the month of April at no charge.  They would like to do that again this year as well. 
 
Commissioners had discussion about not allowing contractors to waive the fees.  
 
Comm. Luke made motion to approve Jasper County Landfill to waive tipping fees for the month of April 2019 
during Landfill hours for Jasper County residents only; only 4 tires per household, only pick-up trucks and yard 
trailers and allow Sheriff clean up free of charge on March 23rd.  Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously. 
 

 
Four Roads Asphalt Repair Bid Award: 

Mr. Benton noted 4 bids were received:  
 
East Coast Grading -   $43,700.00 
Houston Asphalt -   $32,410.00 
Jack Buckland Paving -  $24,500.00 
Womack Paving -   $42,300.00 
 
Mr. Benton noted County Engineer, Public Works Director and County Manager recommend awarding the bid 
to Jack Buckland Paving and charge it to the 2018 SPLOST. 
 
Comm. Luke made motion to award the Four Roads Overlay Repairs Project bid to the apparent low bidder, 
Jack Buckland Paving, in the amount of $24,500.00 to come out of 2018 SPLOST, for placement of asphalt for 
the four roads (Turtle Cove Trailway (100’ x 22’), Fullerton Phillips Road (220’ x 20’), Jones Road (230’ x 
20’), and McMichael Road (200’ x 18’).  Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 
 
Public Works Equipment: 

7



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 4, 2019 – Regular Meeting  
 

Mr. Benton noted that there was a Work Session held earlier and some immediate need for a Tandem Dump 
Truck and Motor grader were expressed by Public Works Director, Preston Campbell. 
 
Mr. Henry noted they discussed that the Dump Truck was an immediate need and the motor grader could be put 
off until we got employees to operate. 
 
Mr. Benton noted the lead time for the motor grader is pretty quick response.  
 
Commissioners agreed to advertise for help and get someone hired and trained.  
 
Comm. Henry made motion to get bids on Tandem Dump Truck based on Work Session discussion and bring 
bids back to secure funding; Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously.    
 
Comm. Luke made motion to table motor grader purchase until we get a properly trained operator, Henry 
seconded; passed unanimously. 
 

Public Works Shop Building: 

Mr. Benton noted it was also discussed in the Work Session about the need for a Public Works Shop Building.  
 
Commissioners agreed to have County Manager, Public Works Director, and County Engineer to come back to 
Board with plans. 
 

2019 Capital Improvements Element – Impact Fees: 

Comm. Henry made motion to table until next Regular Meeting Work Session, Jernigan seconded; passed 
unanimously. 
 

County Attorney Items: 

Atty. Ozburn noted City of Monticello submitted a bill that changed Charter to add Municipal Court back, they 
have an IGA with Magistrate Judge, no detrimental effect to County. Also noted he will need an Executive 
Session. 

 

County Manager Items: 

Mr. Benton noted that Goolsby Road, Shepherd Road to be finalized; cleanup and repair at Animal Shelter. 
Public Works is going to work with Animal Shelter to fix some drainage issues. Reached out for help on 
Courthouse repairs, has one proposal waiting on 2 more; will come to board when he gets them all. 
 
Comm. Pennamon noted that Mr. L.O. Benton passed away, he has been an asset to the County and his services 
will be this Friday. 
 
Citizens Comments: 

8



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 4, 2019 – Regular Meeting  
 

 
None.  
 
Executive Session: 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to go into Executive Session at 7:04 p.m. to discuss real estate and potential 
litigation, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 

Comm. Henry made motion to come out of Executive Session at 8:30 p.m., Jernigan seconded; passed 
unanimously. 

Comm. Henry made motion to enter into an IGA and lease cannery property to The Development Authority, 
Luke seconded; passed unanimously. 

Comm. Henry made motion to enter into an IGA with the Development Authority for financing and purchase of 
825 Eatonton Street, Luke seconded; passed unanimously. 

Adjourn: 

Comm. Henry made motion to adjourn at 8:31 p.m., Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously. 

___________________________ 

Carl Pennamon, Chairman 

 

___________________________ 

Clerk, Sharon Robinson 

9



 

 

Consent Agenda – Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  April 1, 2019 
 
Subject:  Approval of Check Register 
 
Summary: 
A check register will be generated by the finance department on meeting day for signature and approval to 
process the checks. 
 
Background: 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve processing of check #’s 54638 - 54865 
  

10



 

 

Public Hearing - Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Planning and Zoning 
 
Date: April 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Public Hearing for Event Center addition to the Permitted Use Table under Agriculture to be able to 
attempt to get a Special Use Permit for an Event Center. (1st Reading) 
 

A public hearing will be held for a Special Event Center addition to the Permitted Uses in the Jasper 
County Ordinance under Agricultural zoning (AG) with a Special Use Permit required. 

 
 
Summary:  
 
To add under Agricultural zoning in the Table of Permitted Uses Event Center with an S on the table. This 
would allow someone in Agricultural zoning to apply for a Special Use Permit to have an Event Center. This 
would allow each individual property to be looked at to see if it is the appropriate location for an Event Center. I 
have also included literature to be added to the ordinance for more specific details and rules for the Event 
Center. 
                     
 
Background:  
 
With the Special Use Permit route, this could allow each site to be looked at closely and evaluate if it is the 
right location for an Event Center. The Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval 3-1 at their meeting 
on March 28, 2019 
                         
   
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
Use                       AG           R-R            R-2          R-1          RL          V-P          O-I       C-1        C-2   M 
Event Center         S 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



 

 

Public Hearing - Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Planning and Zoning 
 
Date: April 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Special Permit Request – Family Burial Plot – Phillip Greene - 82 Sprayberry Rd 
 
 
Summary:  
 
A public hearing will be held for a Special Use Permit for a family burial plot on Tax Map 042-031 containing 
141.78 acres.  Owner of the property is Phillip Greene. 
Phillip Greene who lives at 82 Sprayberry Road Monticello, Ga 31064 wants to put a 1.2 acre Family Burial 
Plot on his private property. He has had a Land Surveyor map out where it will sit on his property. 
                     
Mr. Greene owns over 100 acres and this burial site is not near any property line. Planning and Zoning Board 
recommended approval 4-0 at their meeting on March 28, 2019. 
  

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



 

 

Old Business Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   April 1, 2019 
 
Subject: 2018 Capital Improvements Element Update 
 
 
Summary:  
  
Public Facility   Project Description Submitted with 2018 CIE Update 
Parks & Recreation    Park Expansion 
Fire      Facility Updates 
Jail      Facility Update 
Sheriff      Facility Updates 
E911      Facility Updates       
 
 
DCA is not accepting the project descriptions, Park Expansion and Facility Updates. 
 
DCA is requiring specific projects such as Gymnasium, Multi-Purpose Building, Fire Station, Fire Engine, Fire 
Tanker, Jail Addition, Sheriff Administration Building Addition, Communications Tower, Communications 
Telephone System, Communications Radio System, etc. 
 
Background:  
 
The Georgia Department of Community Affairs requires Counties that participate in the Impact Fee Program to 
submit an annual update of the Capital Improvements Element of the Impact Fee Program. NEGRC provides an 
initial review and then submits to DCA. 
 
Staff submitted a 2018 CIE Update as required.in accordance with the Development Impact Fee Compliance 
Requirements established by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs.  
 
DCA is requiring additional information to the previously submitted 2018 CIE Update.  
 
Additional information required: 
Expand Financial Report to Include Impact Fees Encumbered. 
Specific Projects in the Project Description Section of the Impact Fee Capital Improvement Project List 
 
Cost:   
 
None 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Board Discretion 
  

29



 

 

Old Business Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Recreation 
 
Date:   April 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Jasper County Recreation Association Board Appointment 
 
 
Summary:  
  
Jasper County Recreation Association Board has one open position with a term that expires in July 2019. The 
open position on the Jasper County Recreation Association Board was advertised. 
 
Received one applicant requesting to serve on the board. 
 
Applicant: Ed Jernigan 
 
Background:  
 
The Jasper County Recreation Association Board amended their bylaws in February, 2019 increasing their 
directors from seven to nine members. 
 
Currently, the Jasper County Recreation Association Board has one opening with a term that expires in July 
2019.  
 
Cost:   
 
None 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Appoint Ed Jernigan to serve as a director on the Jasper County Recreation Association Board to the 
open position that expires in July 2019. 
  

30



31



32



 

 

Old Business Item 3: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Roads and Bridges 
 
Date:   April 1, 2019 
 
Subject: 2019 LMIG Project Bid Award 
 
Summary:  
 
2019 LMIG Project: 
Goolsby Rd - Spot Mill, Patch, Level Course, Double Surface Treatment, Sand Seal 
North Section  2.17 miles 
South Section  3.15 miles 
Total miles  5.32 miles 
   
Received Four Bids: 
Georgia Asphalt, Inc.   $616,492.87 
Pittman Construction Co.  $668,890.32 
Blount Construction Co.  $742,967.60 
Womack Paving, Inc.   $791,000.00 
 
Background:  
 
GDOT 2019 LMIG    $559,173.67 
Required Jasper County Match $167,752.10 
Total 2019 LMIG Projects  $726,925.77 
 
Cost:   
 
Georgia Asphalt, Inc. Bid   $616,492.87 
 
Funding 
 
GDOT LMIG    $559,173.67 
2012 SPLOST    $ 57,319.20 
Total     $616,492.87 
 
 
If Bid Awarded to Georgia Asphalt: 
Remaining Jasper County Required 2019 LMIG Match $110,432.90 
Additional Projects to be Determined 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Award 2019 LMIG Project to Georgia Asphalt, Inc. with low bid of $616,492.87 for resurfacing 5.32 
miles of Goolsby Rd per bid document. 
  

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



 

 

New Business Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Tax Assessor 
 
Date:   April 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Tax Assessor Mapping Contract - GeoView 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Tax Assessor seeks approval to engage Geoview, LLc for GIS services.  
 
 
 
Background:  
 
We have done business with Sewall mapping for many years. They have been purchased by another company 
and the quality of work has declined. I am impressed with GeoView and would like to start with a one year 
contract. Additionally, they are in Georgia as opposed to Maine, where Sewall was located.  
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
$6500 for one year.  
Amount I have budgeted for mapping.  
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Authorize Chairman to sign one year contract with Geoview, LLC. for GIS services as per contract. 
  

44



45



46



 

 

New Business Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Tax Assessor 
 
Date:   April 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Board of Assessors Appointment 
 
 
Summary:  
 
The Jasper County Board of Assessors has one open position.  
The open position was advertised. 
 
Received one applicant to serve on the board. 
 
Applicant: Londa Champion 
 
 
Background:  
 
The Jasper County Board of Assessors is a five member board. 
Currently, the Board has one opening. 
Londa Champion has served on the Board since 2010 and is currently chairman. 
 
 
Cost:   
 
None 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Appoint Londa Champion to the Board of Assessors for the open position with a three year term. 
  

47



48



 

 

New Business Item 3: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:    County Extension 
 
Date:     April 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Extension – Request County Funding to Match UGA Funding – IT Equipment 
  
 
 Summary: 
Again this year UGA has a limited amount of matching funds available through our district office that we can 
request to be used toward the replacement of computers and IT equipment at a significant savings.  The 
warranty for the laptop computer that the County Coordinator/4-H Agent uses will expire next month (May 
2019).  When the warranties expire, Dell will not allow them to be repaired free of charge.  The computer has 
already had to have the battery replaced, and has issues with the unit overheating.  I would like to request 
matching funds to replace this laptop and to purchase an additional monitor for our Ag Agent at a total cost of 
$751.00 to the county with UGA paying the remaining half of the cost.  Around April 15, I will receive 
notification of the matching funds awarded for our county’s request along with the invoice for payment. 
 
Background: 
In the past, money has been included in the County Extension budget as part of Operating Supplies to go toward 
the purchase of computers and IT equipment as needed.  During the proposed budget review with the County 
Manager and the BOC four years ago, I was told not to include the funding for such equipment purchases in my 
budget because they were to come out of contingency funds when needed.  Now I am needing one laptop 
computer to be replaced at the recommendation of our IT support staff for our district because of the warranty 
that will expire next month and its ongoing issues, and we would like to get an additional monitor for our Ag 
Agent at this time while the matching funds are available.  The last time County Extension submitted a request 
for these matching funds from the BOC and UGA was in April 2017. 
 
 
Cost: 
 
Cost to Jasper County  $751.00 
 
Funding Source  General Fund Balance 
  
Recommended Motion: 
Approve a Budget Amendment # 2019-04-01A in the amount of $751.00 to the Jasper County Extension 
office for one half of the cost to purchase a laptop for the County Coordinator and one half of the cost of 
a new monitor for the Ag Agent, the other one half cost to be funded by UGA. 
 
  

49



 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT -  #2019.04.01A 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 

 
 
 
 
Commission approved a budget for fiscal year 2019 for Jasper County Government earlier in the year; and  
 
WHEREAS, the budget is a dynamic rather than static revenue and spending plan which requires adjustment 
from time to time as circumstances change; and 
 
WHEREAS, these adjustments maintain a balanced budget for all funds; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the commission approves allocation of the County Extension 
budget by the following:  
 
GL ACCOUNT- COUNTY EXTENSION      Debit  Credit 
100-700-07100-00053-531740 Operating Supplies                                    $751.00 
 
GL ACCOUNT- FUND BALANCE     Debit  Credit 
100-013-13400-00013-134000 General Fund Balance          $751.00          

                   
 
 
Adopted this _______ of       2019. 
  Day   Month 
 
 
 
             
BOC Chair       Finance Manager 
 
  

50



 

 

New Business - Item 4: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   April 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Special Permit Request – Family Burial Plot – Phillip Greene - 82 Sprayberry Rd 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Phillip Greene who lives at 82 Sprayberry Road Monticello, Ga 31064 wants to put a 1.2 acre Family Burial 
Plot on his private property. He has had a Land Surveyor map out where it will sit on his property. 
                     
See Public Hearing Section for application documents. 
 
Background:  
Mr. Greene owns over 100 acres and this burial site is not near any property line. Planning and Zoning Board 
recommended approval 4-0 at their meeting on March 28, 2019. 
                         
   
 
Cost: 
N/A 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve Special Permit Request by Phillip Greene to place a family burial plot on 1.2 acres on his property on 
Sprayberry Rd per Jasper County Ordinance. 
 
  

51



 

 

New Business Item 5: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   April 1, 2019 
 
Subject: East Georgia Broadband Initiative Resolution 
 
 
Summary: 
 
 In partnership with local, county, and municipal governments, East GA Broadband intends to construct a long-
haul transport fiber network which will be available for dark fiber lease and Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU) 
contractual agreements. This network will create a much-needed express transport route from Atlanta, GA. The 
following counties encompass the “Project Area”: 
 

County County Seat 

Baldwin Milledgeville 
Glascock Gibson 
Hancock Sparta 
Jasper Monticello 
Jones Gray 
McDuffie Thomson 
Putnam Eatonton 
Warren Warrenton 
Wilkinson Irwinton 

  
 
Background: Broadband access is not a luxury, but rather a necessity. The Fiber Broadband Association 
(2018) states that rural communities need and warrant the same robust network as their urban neighbors 
providing access to economic, educational, and healthcare resources. 

 
 
 
Cost:  
 
$0.00 to support resolution.  
 
Federal and State Grants are being applied for to cover network build-out costs.  
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Authorize Chairman to sign the East Georgia Broadband Initiative Resolution # 2019.04.01 as presented. 
  

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



 

 

RESOLUTION Ͳ #2019.04.01 

A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING SUPPORT FOR THE EXPANSION OF RURAL BROADBAND THROUGH THE EAST GEORGIA 
BROADBAND INITIATIVE AND AFFIRMING JASPER COUNTY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE EAST GEORGIA BROADBAND 

INITIATIVE 

WHEREAS, technology has become indispensable for modern life; and  

WHEREAS, much of that technology requires access to – and is powered by – the internet; and  

WHEREAS, in addition to having internet availability, modern technology requires internet speeds sufficient to support 
various applications; and  

WHEREAS, highͲspeed internet – or broadband – is not available in many parts of Jasper County and much of rural 
Georgia; and  

WHEREAS, that lack of broadband internet puts many communities in Georgia at a competitive disadvantage when it 
comes to education, workforce development, economic development and commercial activity; and  

WHEREAS, that lack of broadband also deprives rural Georgians of many of the modern conveniences that citizens in 
larger communities enjoy; and  

WHEREAS, the state of Georgia has recognized this as a major need through the House Rural Development Council and 
the Joint Study Committee on Rural Broadband; and  

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 402 was approved and signed by the Governor in 2018 to establish a framework for assisting 
communities and other entities with the expansion of broadband; and  

WHEREAS, a group of counties and cities have been working cooperatively with Planters Telephone and the Columbia 
County Community Broadband Utility to develop a project that would bring fiber to a vast underserved or unserved area 
of rural Georgia; and  

WHEREAS, in addition to the parties mentioned above, this project includes partnerships with higher education, local 
boards of education, electric cooperatives, and development authorities; and  

WHEREAS, the project takes a unique approach by placing a colocation facility in each county seat to maximize the 
potential that fiberͲtoͲtheͲhome providers will deploy assets; and  

WHEREAS, county and city governments along the route will have an incredible opportunity to establish local 
distribution networks, connecting government facilities and gaining access to reliable highͲspeed internet; and  

WHEREAS, mapping and cost estimates for the project have been developed through the generous assistance of the 
Columbia County Broadband and GIS departments; and  

WHEREAS, this project is a unique situation where a company’s business need is seamlessly aligned with a pressing need 
for Jasper County and other counties and cities in rural Georgia; and  

WHEREAS, a unique group of partners and a unique approach sets this project apart from other rural broadband efforts; 
and   

WHEREAS, the project is eligible for state funding through the Department of Community Affairs and federal funding 
through the United States Department of Agriculture and other agencies; and  

WHEREAS, in addition to the state and federal funding, local funding will be required in order to make the project a 
success;  

66



 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners, assembled in regular session or a 
duly called meeting, that Jasper County fully supports the East Georgia Broadband Initiative; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Jasper County Board of Commissioners acknowledges that County resources will be 
required to successfully complete the project and the Jasper County Board of Commissioners pledges to allocate the 
necessary resources subject to their established budget processes and procedures.   

THIS 1st DAY OF April, 2019. 

 

______________________________________ 
Chairman 
 
Jasper County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
                  [County Seal] 
 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________________ 
County Clerk 
Jasper County Board of Commissioners 
 
  

67



 

 

New Business Item 6: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: County Buildings 
 
Date:   April 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Courthouse Maintenance Project RFP Award – Inspection, Bid Preparation and Project   
 Oversight 
 
Summary:  
Received Two Requests for Proposals: 
 
Carter Watkins Associates 
Fee for Inspection Work $7500.00 
Fee for Bid Preparation, Bidding, Recommending and Project Oversight 
6% of Construction  
 
 
JMA 
Fee for Inspection Work $28,562.00 
Fee for Bid Preparation, Bidding, Recommending and Project Oversight 
15.15% of Construction up to $1,000,000  
13.25% of Construction $1,000,001 to $2,000,000 
11.66% of Construction $2,000,001 to $3,500,000 
9.5% of Construction $3,500,001 to $5,000,000 
 
 
Background:  
The Jasper County Courthouse needs significant repair and maintenance. 
 
Due to the historic structure, type and scale of needed repair and physical size of the building, Jasper County 
published Request for Proposals for “Inspection, Bid Preparation, Recommendation and Construction 
Oversight” for the Jasper County Courthouse. 
 
Cost:   
 
Final cost to be determined based on percentage of total construction cost. 
 
Funding of services: 
Capital Improvement Fund or General Fund Balance 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Approve Fee Proposal from Carter Watkins Associates for Courthouse Repair Project, Inspection Fee is 
$7500.00 and Bid Preparation, Bidding, Recommending and Project Oversight is 6% of Construction. 
  

68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



 

 

 
New Business Item 7: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Senior Center 
 
Date:   April 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Senior Center – NEGRC DHS Transportation Additional Funding – Budget Amendment 
  
 
Summary:  
The Senior Center has also received an increase in funding from DHS Transportation of $25,684.34. This will 
require a Budget Amendment – see attachment. 
 
Background:  
 
The $25,684.34 will be dispersed as shown below on the Budget Amendment. 

 
 
Cost:  
 
$0  
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Approve Budget Amendment #2019-04-01B in the amount of $25,684.34 ($17,184.34 to Part-time wages, 
$5,000 to Vehicle and Equipment Repair, and $3,500 to Vehicle Gas).  

80



 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT - #2019.04.01B 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 

 
 
 
 
Commission approved a budget for fiscal year 2019 for Jasper County Government earlier in the year; and  
 
WHEREAS, the budget is a dynamic rather than static revenue and spending plan which requires adjustment 
from time to time as circumstances change; and 
 
WHEREAS, these adjustments maintain a balanced budget for all funds; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the commission approves allocation of the Senior Center 
budget by the following:  
 
GL ACCOUNT- SENIOR CENTER      Debit  Credit 
100-600-06200-00052-522210 Vehicle & Equipment Repair & Main                        $ 5,000.00 
100-600-06200-00053-531270 Vehicles – Gas      $ 3,500.00 
100-600-62000-00051-511160 Part-time Wages – drivers     $17,184.34 
 
GL ACCOUNT- SENIOR CENTER      Debit  Credit 
100-600-06200-00034-334100 NGRC Transportation Revenue  $25,684.34          

                   
 
 
Adopted this _______ of       2019. 
  Day   Month 
 
 
 
             
BOC Chair       Finance Manager 
 
 
  

81



 

 

 

New Business – Item 8: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Senior Center 
 
Date:   April 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Senior Center - NEGRC AAA Additional Funding – Budget Amendment 
  
 
Summary:  
 
The Senior Center has received an increase in funding from NEGA RC/Area Agency on Aging (AAA) in the 
amount of $3,013.89. This requires a Budget Amendment – see attachment.  
 
Background:  
 
The $3013.89 will go to offset increased costs of General Supplies 531100.   

 
 
Cost:  
 
$0 extra from the county as the Senior Center has generated AAA funding  
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Approve Budget Amendment #2019-04.01C in the amount of #3,013.89 to increase Senior Center General 
Supplies line item.  
  

82



 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT - #2019.04.01C 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 

 
 
 
 
Commission approved a budget for fiscal year 2019 for Jasper County Government earlier in the year; and  
 
WHEREAS, the budget is a dynamic rather than static revenue and spending plan which requires adjustment 
from time to time as circumstances change; and 
 
WHEREAS, these adjustments maintain a balanced budget for all funds; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the commission approves allocation of the Senior Center 
budget by the following:  
 
GL ACCOUNT- SENIOR CENTER      Debit  Credit 
100-600-06200-00053-531100 General Supplies                                    $3,013.89 
 
GL ACCOUNT- EQUITIES & OTHER CREDITS    Debit  Credit 
100-600-06200-00034-334100 NGRC AAA Revenue   $3,013.89          

                   
 
 
Adopted this _______ of       2019. 
  Day   Month 
 
 
 
             
BOC Chair       Finance Manager 
 
 
 
  

83



 

 

New Business Item 9: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Senior Center 
 
Date:   April 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Senior Center – NEGRC AAA Additional Funding Reimbursement – Budget    
  Amendment 
  
 
Summary:  
Northeast Georgia Regional Commission AAA is giving the Jasper County Senior Center additional funding of 
$10,000 to help us furnish/equip our expanded facility. The funds must be fronted by the county and then they 
will reimburse it.  
 
Background:  
This is a gift to our center to help our seniors and Senior Center to grow. 
 
Cost: $0  
 
Recommended Motion:  
Authorize Senior Center to spend $10,000 additional funding from NEGRC AAA to be reimbursed and approve 
Budget Amendment #2019-04-01D in the amount of $10,000. 
 
  

84



 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT - #2019-04-01D 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 

 
 
 
 
Commission approved a budget for fiscal year 2019 for Jasper County Government earlier in the year; and  
 
WHEREAS, the budget is a dynamic rather than static revenue and spending plan which requires adjustment 
from time to time as circumstances change; and 
 
WHEREAS, these adjustments maintain a balanced budget for all funds; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the commission approves allocation of the Senior Center 
budget by the following:  
 
GL ACCOUNT- SENIOR CENTER      Debit  Credit 
100-600-06200-00053-535000 Facility Expansion Expense                            $10,000.00 
 
GL ACCOUNT- EQUITIES & OTHER CREDITS    Debit  Credit 
100-600-06200-00034-334100 NGRC AAA Revenue   $10,000.00          

                   
 
 
Adopted this _______ of       2019. 
  Day   Month 
 
 
 
             
BOC Chair       Finance Manager 
 
 
 

85



Jasper County Senior Center
Facility Expansion Proposed Purchase List

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

A B C G H I
Quantity Item Company Price AAA Extra

115 Chairs - Dining Rm Webstaurant Sto $3,500.00 3,500.00$        
2 Exercise Bikes $1,000.00 1,000.00$        
8 Rocking Chairs Walmart $800.00 800.00$           
1 Washer $400.00 400.00$           
1 Vending Machine $3,000.00 3,000.00$        
1 Telephone System $400.00 400.00$           
1 Office Bookcase $300.00 300.00$           
1 Security System $600.00 600.00$           

TOTAL Furnish/Equip $10,000.00 10,000.00$    

TOTAL ALL $10,000.00 10,000.00$    


